
 

Page 1 of 3 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2023 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  

 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 
  
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
 
 ORDERS 

11075 – An Order Authorizing $12,551.87 Payment of Prior Year Expenditure for 
Police Department. (Finance Committee) 

 
11078 – An Order to Rescind Prior Order to Raise and appropriate $27,880,707.70 for 

the Various Departments for the Expense Budget for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024. (Finance Committee) 

 
11079 – An Order to Raise and Appropriate $25,855,113.10 for the Various 

Departments for the Expense Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 
2023, to June 30, 2024. (Finance Committee) 

 
 
 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 COMMUNICATIONS 
11080 – A Measure to Adopt a Factor for Real Estate and Personal Property Taxation 

for Fiscal Year 2024. (Finance Committee; Public Hearing Required) 
 
11081 – A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Certification of LA-4 

Assessment/Classification Report FY2024. 
 

11082 – A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Certification of Gardner LA13 Tax 
Base Levy Growth. 

 
 APPOINTMENTS 

11083 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Debra Pond to the 
Position of Human Resources Director, for term expiring October 31, 2026. 
(Appointment Committee) 

 
11084 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of David Hackett to the 

Position of Disability Commission Member, for term expiring October 30, 
2026. (Appointment Committee) 

 
11085 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Debra Pond to the 

Position of Disability Commission Member, for term expiring October 30, 
2026. (Appointment Committee) 

 
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 

11086 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets”. (Public Safety Committee) 

 
11087 – A Ruling from the Attorney General relative to an Open Meeting Law 

Complaint Filed by Paul DeMeo Regarding Meeting Minutes. 
 
X. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
   
 FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 11061 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner by Adding a 

New Chapter to be Entitled, Chapter 504: Wage Theft Protection, Which 
Shall Provide for Protections for Workers and Employees of Contractors 
Working on City Projects. (Submitted by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz; In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee 
9/18/2023; More Time 10/2/2023) 

 
XI.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION  
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

11088 – A Request from Councillor James Boone to have a Special Meeting of the 
Council as a Whole to Hear a Presentation by SoMax Circular Solutions. 

  
XIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
XIIV. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 
 
 
 



11075



11075



1

John Richard

From: John Richard

Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 9:16 AM

To: Mayor; Titi Siriphan

Cc: Debra Pond

Subject: FW: Josh Willis Agreement/Retro Prior Period Expense

Attachments: Canine Officer MOA 2023 Signed.pdf; AUTHORIZING PAYMT PRIOR YEAR SAL-POL Josh Willis.doc

Hi Ti 

Please add the aached order to the next FinCom and CC agenda.  A copy of the signed Canine MOA is aached and retro breakdown is below. 

Thank you. 

John Richard 

City Auditor 

95 Pleasant Street, Room 114 

Gardner, MA 01440-2630 

978-632-1900 ext 8020

From: Debra Pond <dpond@gardner-ma.gov> 

Sent: Monday, October 16, 2023 4:19 PM 

11075



2

To: John Richard <jrichard@gardner-ma.gov> 

Subject: Willis Agreement 

 

John: 

 

Signed Canine Officer Agreement. 

 

Debra A. PondDebra A. PondDebra A. PondDebra A. Pond    

Director of Human Resources 

City of Gardner 

95 Pleasant Street, Rm. 226 

Gardner, MA 01440 

dpond@gardner-ma.gov 

Tel:  (978) 630-4001 

Cell: (978) 870-8483 

Fax: (978) 630-4025 

 

11075



11075



11075



11078



11078



11078



11079



11079



11079



11080



11080



11080



11080



11080



11080



11080



11081



11081



11081



11082



11082



11082



11083



11084



11085



AN ORDINACNE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Garnder, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” by amended by adding the following 
 
Name of Street  Side   Loca�on 
Comee St   West   En�re Length 
Comee St   East   From Pearl Street southerly for a distance  

of 30 feet 

11086



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
200 Main Street ֱ• Gardner, Massachusetts 01440 

                                      Emergency-Dial 911 
  Main line: (978) 632-5600 
Fax Line: (978) 630-4027 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC COMMISSION - MEETING MINUTES 

Date: Thursday August 10,2023       Time: 10am 

Location: Community Classroom, GPD 

 

Provided by Dept. Chief of Police Nick Maroni 

 

1. Members in attendance:  Call to Order: 10:03 am by D.C. Nicholas Maroni 

Dane Arnold – Director of DPW 

Rob Oliva – City Engineer 

Josh Cormier – Director of Civil Enforcement 

Craig Cormier – Councilor at large  

 

Member(s) not in attendance- Trevor Beauregard 

 

2. Waive reading / acceptance of meeting minutes from April 24,2023  

 

a. Motion by Dane, 2nd by Rob, All in favor – Unanimous.  

 

3. Rob- updated on flashing school zone signs on Catherine St 

 

a. Future updates to city ordinance to define current school zones. 

 

4. Gardner ale house renting a parking spot on parker St to designate as Pick up parking. 

a. Josh- if allowed would this cause other businesses to ask too. 

b. Dane-not in favor, large parking area behind business and across the street 

c. Nick- limited parking already in the downtown area 

d. Dane motion to not allow pick up parking for all of downtown, Rob 2nd, unanimous vote. 

 

5. Pedestrian traffic concerns with new Tap House going in at Bullnose Park. 

a. Rob- ask Tap house to help enhance crosswalks in area, flashing lights, push button to activate when 

pedestrians cross. Recommends city work with building owner to install flashing lights 

 

6. New School Traffic and speeding on Catherine St.  

a. Dane worked with school on new traffic pattern for drop off and pick up that should cut down on traffic. 

Tabled until start of school to see how it works. 

 

7. Eliminate Parking Spot on Central St near the cross walk at Lake St on the Southwest travel side of Central St so 

pedestrians can be seen by motor vehicles.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd All in Favor-Unanimous 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee  

 

8. Remove handicap spot in front of 144 Central St and recommend city council to approve new Handicap spots on 

Central St at Monument Park.  

a. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd, all in favor, unanimous. 

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee 

c. Let property owner know about removing Handicap spot in front of 144 Central. 

 

11086



9. Eliminate parking spot in front of crosswalk on west bound side of East Broadway at Prospect St so motor vehicles

can see pedestrians in the cross walk.

a. Dane motioned, Rob 2nd all in favor, unanimous.

b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee.

10. New Business

a. Rob suggested making whole length of westside of Comee St no parking and making no parking 30 ft

from stop sign on east side heading from Pearl St

i. Dane motioned, Josh 2nd all in favor, unanimous will be forwarded to public safety committee.

b. Speeding on Elm St & Lawrence St, request more enforcement with school starting.

c. Craig asked about speeding issues on Chesley St

i. Nick stated Officers did enforcement in that area and we have not received any further complaints.

Conclusion: At 10:56 am Dane made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Craig 

All in favor - Unanimous 

Next Traffic Committee Meeting Schedule: TBD 

11086

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight



From: OpenMeeting (AGO)
To: Elizabeth Kazinskas
Cc: PAUL DEMEO; Titi Siriphan
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Open Meeting Law determination
Date: Thursday, November 2, 2023 11:32:11 AM
Attachments: OML 2023-179 - Gardner City Council and Finance Committee.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the City of Gardner mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you verify the sender and know the content is
safe.
Dear Ms. Kazinskas,

Please see the attached Open Meeting Law determination.

Sincerely,

Natalie Arellano (she/her/hers)
Paralegal
Division of Open Government
Massachusetts Office of the Attorney General

11087

mailto:OpenMeeting@MassMail.State.MA.US
mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:ryanrealty@comcast.net
mailto:tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov



 


THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 


ONE ASHBURTON PLACE 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02108 


 (617) 727-2200 
 www.mass.gov/ago 


 
 


November 2, 2023  
  


OML 2023 – 179  
  
VIA EMAIL  
  
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas  
City Council President 
Office of the City Council 
Gardner MA 01440-2630 
  
ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov  
 


RE: Open Meeting Law Complaints  
 


Dear Ms. Kazinskas:  
 


This office received three complaints from Paul DeMeo, alleging that the Gardner City 
Council (“Council”) and its Finance Committee (the “Committee”) violated the Open Meeting 
Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25.  Mr. DeMeo filed complaints with the Council and with the 
Committee on March 3, 2023, and March 8, 2023, respectively.  The Council and Committee 
responded by letters dated March 22, 2023, and the complaints were filed with this office on 
April 7, 2023.  The third complaint originally was filed with the Committee on June 27, 2023, 
and the Committee responded by letter dated July 13, 2023.  The third complaint was filed with 
this office on August 11, 2023.  Collectively, the complaints allege that the Council and its 
Committee failed to create and approve meeting minutes in a timely manner.1   


 
Following our review, we find that the Council and the Committee violated the Open 


Meeting Law.  In reaching this determination, we reviewed the original complaints, the 


 
1 The complaint dated June 27, 2023, faults the Committee for failing to “post” minutes.  To the extent that the 
complainant argues that the subject minutes should have been posted to a municipal website, we note that the Open 
Meeting Law does not require public bodies to post meeting minutes. See OML 2015-173; OML 2013-117.  Rather, 
the Law requires that “[t]he minutes of an open session, if they exist and whether approved or in draft form, shall be 
made available upon request by any person within 10 days.”  G.L. c. 30A, § 22(c).  Similarly, the March 8 complaint 
against the Committee states that it “failed to approve and make available” the minutes (emphasis added).  Mr. 
DeMeo does not allege, and the Committee explicitly denies, that the minutes ever were requested.  Therefore, this 
determination addresses only the failure to approve minutes timely and not any allegation that the Committee failed 
to respond to a request for minutes. 







2 
 


Council’s and the Committee’s responses to the complaints, the complainant’s requests for 
further review, and the meeting calendar available on the City of Gardner’s website. 


  
FACTS  


We find the facts as follows.   The Council held meetings on November 7, November 21 
(two meetings), December 5, December 19, 2022, and January 3 and January 17, 2023.  The 
Council approved the minutes of these meetings on March 20, 2023.  The Committee held 
meetings on October 3, October 12, November 17, November 30, December 14, 2022, and 
January 30, 2023, the minutes of which were approved March 20, 2023.  The Committee also 
held meetings on April 26, May 10 and May 31, 2023, the minutes of which were approved on 
July 3, 2023.  Around the time of these complaints, the City’s two Assistant City Clerks 
announced their retirement.  The City Clerk was working to train a new hire to take over the 
responsibilities of the retiring staff. 


DISCUSSION  
 


The Open Meeting Law was enacted “to eliminate much of the secrecy surrounding the 
deliberations and decisions on which public policy is based.” Ghiglione v. School Board of 
Southbridge, 376 Mass. 70, 72 (1978).  The Open Meeting Law requires public bodies to create 
and approve meeting minutes in a timely manner.  G.L. c. 30A, § 22(c).  “Timely manner” 
means “within the next three public body meetings or within 30 days, whichever is later, unless 
the public body can show good cause for further delay.”  940 CMR 29.11; see OML 2018-48.  
Whenever possible, we recommend that minutes of a meeting be approved at the next meeting.  
See OML 2018-67; OML 2017-133.  
 


With one possible exception,2 the minutes referenced in Mr. DeMeo’s complaints were 
not approved within three meetings or 30 days of their respective meeting.  In their responses, 
the Council and the Committee acknowledge that the minutes were not approved within the later 
of their next three meetings or 30 days but maintain that they had good cause for the delay.  See 
940 CMR 29.11.  Specifically, they cite backlogs at the City clerk’s office caused by staffing 
issues, including retirements and training.  However, staffing shortages of the type that all 
governmental bodies with limited resources experience, including periodic staff vacancies, do 
not constitute good cause for failing to approve minutes in a timely manner.   See OML 2023-
117.  A public body must ensure that staff have adequate assistance to complete the minutes in a 
timely manner, having members of the public body assist in the creation of minutes if necessary. 
See OML 2023-117; OML 2021-177; OML 2018- 105; OML 2015-86.  Ultimately, the duty to 
comply with the deadline to approve meeting minutes rests with public bodies, not with 
administrative staff or other public employees. See OML 2023-117; OML 2018-105. Therefore, 
we find that neither the Council nor the Committee had good cause for its delay in approving 
meeting minutes.   


 


 
2 Minutes of the Committee’s May 31 meeting were approved on July 3, 2023.  The Committee held three 
intervening meetings between May 31 and July 3.   Arguably, two of those meetings (both held on June 8) could be 
counted as one for these purposes, as one was held immediately after the other although the Committee posted 
separate notices.  We need not resolve this issue in light of the other clear Open Meting Law violations.   







3 
 


CONCLUSION 
  


For the reasons stated above, we find that the Council and the Committee violated the 
Open Meeting Law by failing to approve meeting minutes in a timely manner. Because all the 
meeting minutes have since been approved, we order no further remedial action.  We order 
immediate and future compliance with the law's requirements and we caution that similar future 
violations may be considered evidence of intent to violate the law. 
 


We now consider the complaints addressed by this determination to be resolved.  Please 
feel free to contact our office at (617) 963-2540 if you have any questions.  


 
Sincerely,  


   
Matthew Lindberg 
Assistant Attorney General  
Division of Open Government  


  
cc: Paul DeMeo (via e-mail: ryanrealty@comcast.net)  
 Gardner City Clerk (via e-mail: tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov) 
  
  
   
  


This determination was issued pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(c).  A public body or any 
member of a body aggrieved by a final order of the Attorney General may obtain judicial 


review through an action filed in Superior Court pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(d).  The 
complaint must be filed in Superior Court within twenty-one days of receipt of a final 


order.  
  


  
 
 
 







THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

ONE ASHBURTON PLACE 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02108 

(617) 727-2200
www.mass.gov/ago 

November 2, 2023 

OML 2023 – 179  

VIA EMAIL 

Elizabeth J. Kazinskas  
City Council President 
Office of the City Council 
Gardner MA 01440-2630 

ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov 

RE: Open Meeting Law Complaints 

Dear Ms. Kazinskas:  

This office received three complaints from Paul DeMeo, alleging that the Gardner City 
Council (“Council”) and its Finance Committee (the “Committee”) violated the Open Meeting 
Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25.  Mr. DeMeo filed complaints with the Council and with the 
Committee on March 3, 2023, and March 8, 2023, respectively.  The Council and Committee 
responded by letters dated March 22, 2023, and the complaints were filed with this office on 
April 7, 2023.  The third complaint originally was filed with the Committee on June 27, 2023, 
and the Committee responded by letter dated July 13, 2023.  The third complaint was filed with 
this office on August 11, 2023.  Collectively, the complaints allege that the Council and its 
Committee failed to create and approve meeting minutes in a timely manner.1  

Following our review, we find that the Council and the Committee violated the Open 
Meeting Law.  In reaching this determination, we reviewed the original complaints, the 

1 The complaint dated June 27, 2023, faults the Committee for failing to “post” minutes.  To the extent that the 
complainant argues that the subject minutes should have been posted to a municipal website, we note that the Open 
Meeting Law does not require public bodies to post meeting minutes. See OML 2015-173; OML 2013-117.  Rather, 
the Law requires that “[t]he minutes of an open session, if they exist and whether approved or in draft form, shall be 
made available upon request by any person within 10 days.”  G.L. c. 30A, § 22(c).  Similarly, the March 8 complaint 
against the Committee states that it “failed to approve and make available” the minutes (emphasis added).  Mr. 
DeMeo does not allege, and the Committee explicitly denies, that the minutes ever were requested.  Therefore, this 
determination addresses only the failure to approve minutes timely and not any allegation that the Committee failed 
to respond to a request for minutes. 

11087



2 

Council’s and the Committee’s responses to the complaints, the complainant’s requests for 
further review, and the meeting calendar available on the City of Gardner’s website. 

FACTS 

We find the facts as follows.   The Council held meetings on November 7, November 21 
(two meetings), December 5, December 19, 2022, and January 3 and January 17, 2023.  The 
Council approved the minutes of these meetings on March 20, 2023.  The Committee held 
meetings on October 3, October 12, November 17, November 30, December 14, 2022, and 
January 30, 2023, the minutes of which were approved March 20, 2023.  The Committee also 
held meetings on April 26, May 10 and May 31, 2023, the minutes of which were approved on 
July 3, 2023.  Around the time of these complaints, the City’s two Assistant City Clerks 
announced their retirement.  The City Clerk was working to train a new hire to take over the 
responsibilities of the retiring staff. 

DISCUSSION 

The Open Meeting Law was enacted “to eliminate much of the secrecy surrounding the 
deliberations and decisions on which public policy is based.” Ghiglione v. School Board of 
Southbridge, 376 Mass. 70, 72 (1978).  The Open Meeting Law requires public bodies to create 
and approve meeting minutes in a timely manner.  G.L. c. 30A, § 22(c).  “Timely manner” 
means “within the next three public body meetings or within 30 days, whichever is later, unless 
the public body can show good cause for further delay.”  940 CMR 29.11; see OML 2018-48.  
Whenever possible, we recommend that minutes of a meeting be approved at the next meeting.  
See OML 2018-67; OML 2017-133.  

With one possible exception,2 the minutes referenced in Mr. DeMeo’s complaints were 
not approved within three meetings or 30 days of their respective meeting.  In their responses, 
the Council and the Committee acknowledge that the minutes were not approved within the later 
of their next three meetings or 30 days but maintain that they had good cause for the delay.  See 
940 CMR 29.11.  Specifically, they cite backlogs at the City clerk’s office caused by staffing 
issues, including retirements and training.  However, staffing shortages of the type that all 
governmental bodies with limited resources experience, including periodic staff vacancies, do 
not constitute good cause for failing to approve minutes in a timely manner.   See OML 2023-
117. A public body must ensure that staff have adequate assistance to complete the minutes in a
timely manner, having members of the public body assist in the creation of minutes if necessary.
See OML 2023-117; OML 2021-177; OML 2018- 105; OML 2015-86.  Ultimately, the duty to
comply with the deadline to approve meeting minutes rests with public bodies, not with
administrative staff or other public employees. See OML 2023-117; OML 2018-105. Therefore,
we find that neither the Council nor the Committee had good cause for its delay in approving
meeting minutes.

2 Minutes of the Committee’s May 31 meeting were approved on July 3, 2023.  The Committee held three 
intervening meetings between May 31 and July 3.   Arguably, two of those meetings (both held on June 8) could be 
counted as one for these purposes, as one was held immediately after the other although the Committee posted 
separate notices.  We need not resolve this issue in light of the other clear Open Meting Law violations.   

11087



3 

CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated above, we find that the Council and the Committee violated the 
Open Meeting Law by failing to approve meeting minutes in a timely manner. Because all the 
meeting minutes have since been approved, we order no further remedial action.  We order 
immediate and future compliance with the law's requirements and we caution that similar future 
violations may be considered evidence of intent to violate the law. 

We now consider the complaints addressed by this determination to be resolved.  Please 
feel free to contact our office at (617) 963-2540 if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew Lindberg 
Assistant Attorney General  
Division of Open Government 

cc: Paul DeMeo (via e-mail: ryanrealty@comcast.net) 
Gardner City Clerk (via e-mail: tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov) 

This determination was issued pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(c).  A public body or any 
member of a body aggrieved by a final order of the Attorney General may obtain judicial 

review through an action filed in Superior Court pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(d).  The 
complaint must be filed in Superior Court within twenty-one days of receipt of a final 

order.  

11087



From: James Boone
To: Elizabeth Kazinskas
Cc: Titi Siriphan
Subject: New Business Agenda Item
Date: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 3:26:19 PM

Hi Lizzy,

I respectfully request an agenda item for New Business to request approval of a special
meeting of the Council as a Whole to hear a presentation by SoMax Circular Solutions regarding the
feasibility of an alternative or addition to expanding the Sludge Landfill. 

Alan Rousseau sent each Councilor, via email, highlights and documentation of the study.  I and
other councilors that I have talked to feel it would be worthwhile for us to hear a presentation and
have the opportunity for Q/A.

Hoping it can be placed on the Agenda for our next meeting.  Please let me know.

Best Regards,
Jim

11088

mailto:jboone@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov



